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Application #’s VA21-12, VA21-13 & VA/CU-21-14     October 14, 2021 1 
 2 

LEGAL NOTICE 3 
Notice is hereby given that the Orange Township Board of Zoning Appeals will hold a public hearing on Thursday, 4 
October 14, 2021, beginning at 6:00 p.m. to consider the following application/s: 5 
 6 
Variance Application #VA-21-12 Sriram Pendurthi, 7 
Seeking an area variance from Rezoning Case #12-0223 Sanctuary at the Lakes to allow for a deck to be constructed 8 
within the rear-yard setback of thirty-five (35’) feet. The subject property is located at 4876 Royal Birkdale Drive 9 
Westerville, OH 43082 and having parcel number 318-140-15-014-000. 10 
 11 
Variance Application #VA-21-13 The Nutter Company 2 LLC c/o Matie Clossman, 12 
Seeking an area variance from Orange Township Zoning Resolution Section 22.03 c) to allow for signage above the 13 
allowed standard height. The subject property is located at 1156 E. Powell Rd., Lewis Center, OH 43035 and having 14 
parcel number 318-341-02-002-006. 15 
 16 
Variance/Conditional Use Application #VA/CU-21-14 Columbus Sign Co., c/o Jim McFarland & Rebecca 17 
Green, 18 
Seeking variance from Development Plan 11-0055 Creekside Industrial Park and the Orange Township Zoning 19 
Resolution for a divergence in a monument sign style and color. They are also seeking a conditional use for the 20 
monument sign. The subject property is 7115 Green Meadows Dr., Lewis Center, OH 43035 and having parcel 21 
number 318-230-14-008-003 22 
 23 
The hearing will be held at the Orange Township Hall, 1680 East Orange Road, Lewis Center, Ohio, 43035. 24 
 25 
The applications and plans are available for inspection for a period of at least 10 days prior to the hearing at the 26 
Orange Township Zoning Office, 1680 East Orange Road, Lewis Center, Ohio, 43035.  Zoning Office hours are 27 
Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. except legal holidays. 28 
 29 
Following this hearing the Board may have a meeting for general purposes to consider such business as may 30 
properly come before it including, but not limited to, consideration and/or approval of minutes, scheduling future 31 
hearing dates for this or other applications and like matters. 32 
 33 
The person responsible for the publication of this notice is Jeff Beard, Orange Township Zoning Department. 34 
 35 

Jerry Miller, Chairman 36 
Jeff Beard, Orange Township Zoning Department 37 

 38 
 39 
Please publish one time, on or before Friday, October 1, 2021 in The Delaware Gazette 40 
 41 
Mr. Oster called the hearing to order at 6:00 p.m. 42 
 43 
Roll Call:  Jerry Miller-absent, Rick Oster, Aaron Shipley, Punitha Sundar, Kelvin Trefz  44 
 45 
Township Officials Also Present:            Michele Boni, Township Administrator 46 
      Brett Wiemken, Zoning Inspector 47 
 48 
Mr. Oster swore in those wishing to testify 49 
 50 
Variance Application #VA-21-12 Sriram Pendurthi, 51 
Seeking an area variance from Rezoning Case #12-0223 Sanctuary at the Lakes to allow for a deck to be constructed 52 
within the rear-yard setback of thirty-five (35’) feet. The subject property is located at 4876 Royal Birkdale Drive 53 
Westerville, OH 43082 and having parcel number 318-140-15-014-000. 54 
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Mr. Wiemken presented the Staff Report and presentation. The applicant is seeking an Area Variance to allow a 55 
deck to encroach 4’ into the 35’ rear yard setback which is approximately an 11% variance request. The surrounding 56 
area is all zoned Single Family Residential. To the north and south are single family residences, to the east is open 57 
space. Exhibit 1 is the site plan which shows the layout. Exhibit 2 are the site photos.   58 
 59 

APPLICANT PRESENTATION/BOARD QUESTIONS & COMMENTS 60 
 61 
Sriram Pendurthi, 4876 Royal Birkdale Drive, Westerville, Ohio 43082. I am requesting a deck that goes 62 
4’ into the setback and that leaves 31’. 63 
 64 
Mr. Trefz: What’s the side setback? Everything was listed as 17.5’ from the building but the side setback 65 
was not marked on there. 66 
 67 
Mr. Wiemken: I believe its 12.5’. 68 
 69 
Mr. Shipley: Have you already talked to the Homeowners’ Association?  70 
 71 
Mr. Pendurthi: Yes. 72 
 73 

MOTION TO APPROVE VARIABNCE APPLICATION #VA-21-12 74 
 75 

Mr. Oster made a motion to approve Variance Application #VA-21-12, Sriram Pendurthi, as presented; 76 
seconded by Mr. Trefz. 77 
 78 
Vote on Motion: Mr. Oster-yes, Mr. Shipley-yes, Ms. Sundar-yes, Mr. Trefz-yes 79 
Motion carried. 80 
 81 
Hearing continued with Variance Application #VA-21-13 82 
 83 
Minutes prepared by Cindy Davis, Zoning Secretary 84 
 85 
 86 
 87 
 88 
 89 
 90 
 91 
  92 
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Application #VA-21-13         October 14, 2021 1 
 2 
Variance Application #VA-21-13 The Nutter Company 2 LLC c/o Matie Clossman, 3 
Seeking an area variance from Orange Township Zoning Resolution Section 22.03 c) to allow for signage above the 4 
allowed standard height. The subject property is located at 1156 E. Powell Rd., Lewis Center, OH 43035 and having 5 
parcel number 318-341-02-002-006. 6 
 7 
Mr. Wiemken presented the Staff Report and presentation. The zoning of this property is Planned Commercial. The 8 
applicant is requesting an Area Variance to allow three wall signs to be installed above the standard height of 15’. 9 
The signs proposed are 15’1-1/4”, 19’2-7/8” and 20’8”. The east elevation sign would have the 1-1/4” divergence, 10 
the north sign would have a 4’2-7/8” divergence and the south sign would be a 5’8” variance. The surrounding area 11 
to the north has zoning of Planned Commercial and Single Family. The land use is Powell Road with commercial 12 
and single family residences. To the south and east are both Planned Commercial and Office, both having 13 
commercial land uses and to the west is Multi-Family Planned Residential with The Lakes Club condos. The aerials 14 
are a little out of date and show construction on the site. The first variance request for the east elevation sign, our 15 
Code states such signs shall be located on or along the building adjacent to a parking lot or service lane shall be 16 
located 15’ above finish grade or height of ceiling of the first floor of the building, whichever is less. The proposed 17 
sign for the east elevation would encroach 1-1/4” into the 15’ height requirement, so it would so it would be roughly 18 
7% variance request. Exhibit 1 shows the east elevation. 19 
 20 

APPLICANT PRESENTATION/BOARD QUESTIONS & COMMENTS 21 
 22 

Jim Hartley, Signcom, 527 W. Rich Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215. We are requesting a height variance for 3 wall 23 
signs. They are typical of a previous car wash that was approved by Orange Township in Lewis Center. It’s typical 24 
of car washes in Orange Township that have received a variance in height. The building is in a commercial strip 25 
center outlot in a commercial area. These signs are externally illuminated with goose neck lights. They don’t cast 26 
light out beyond the sign; they cast straight down, not casting light into a neighboring area, so there’s no concern 27 
that it will disrupt any of the neighbors. They are dimensional architecturally pleasing signs with goose neck lights 28 
on them. They’re not plastic bubbles or channel letters so they have more of a residential architectural feel to them 29 
and what are typical with these other locations. We aren’t forcing the signs to the very top of the architectural; we’re 30 
putting them where they look correct on the height of the elevations.  31 
 32 
Mr. Oster: I believe the ones on 23 are internally lit.  33 
 34 
Mr. Hartley: They are and we ran into a zoning in Delaware that required that and we liked the looks of that so 35 
we’re continuing on other locations with that. I have some partial photos of the Lewis Center one if that would help. 36 
 37 
Mr. Oster: This area here is 15’ all around the building unlike the other one. The requirements were at different 38 
heights; it wasn’t just 15’ all the way around the structure. 39 
 40 
Mr. Hartley:  Different zoning area. 41 
 42 
Mr. Oster: Different areas zoned differently. 43 
 44 
Mr. Hartley: I didn’t know this was a variance restricted at this site; I thought it was granted at the other site also.  45 
 46 
Mr. Trefz: It may have been granted but it may have been different. 47 
 48 
Mr. Oster: I know the front face facing 23 had a higher height than the sides in that area. That’s just the way the 49 
whole area was done. Is that correct, Brett, that this one is 15’ all the way around? 50 
 51 
Mr. Wiemken: Correct.  52 
 53 
Mr. Trefz: Which was determined first, the height of your building or the height of the signs? 54 
 55 



Board of Zoning Appeals 

Page 2 of 5                                #VA-21-13; 10/14/21 
 

Mr. Hartley: The height of the building and that is typically where they are located on a building. We have done this 56 
typical design at several locations.  57 
 58 
Mr. Trefz: Right, but our zoning requires 15’, so you knew that and you didn’t modify the height of the building?  59 
 60 
Mr. Hartley: No, the building height has been the same prior to the sign. 61 
 62 
Mr. Trefz: You stated that the sign placement was pleasing or appropriate for the height, so if you built the building 63 
too tall for the 15’ height; do you see where I’m going? 64 
 65 
Mr. Hartley: I think I do but we didn’t build the building too high. It’s a typical shell that he built at every location 66 
of the size required for the car wash.  67 
 68 
Mr. Trefz: We have that restriction, so that’s why I was asking the question to see if you had modified the height or 69 
could have modified the height before you began construction. 70 
 71 
Mr. Hartley: It wouldn’t have been required for the 15’ sign. The building height wouldn’t have changed based on 72 
the sign regulations. It had no relevance to what the sign height was. 73 

 74 
Mr. Oster: He’s saying they’re building all their car washes the same. 75 
  76 
Mr. Trefz: I realize that but each area has different criteria that sometimes they have to modify. 77 
  78 
Mr. Hartley: And in Delaware we had to modify to externally illuminate.  79 
 80 
Mr. Shipley: The specific one we’re talking about right now is the east. 81 
 82 
Mr. Hartley: That’s 15’1-1/4”; we can avoid that one completely, remove the variance. That one’s just typical. 15’ is 83 
fine on that one. 1-1/4”, no one is going to notice.  84 
 85 
Mr. Oster: That’s not a big deal anyway.  86 
 87 
Mr. Hartley: It’s just what was sent in originally for permitting, so he said these 3 would need a variance.  We’ve 88 
already received permitting for the signs that met the height requirements; these are just the three that didn’t 89 
conform.  90 
 91 

MOTION TO APPROVE VARIANCE APPLICATION #VA-21-13 92 
 93 

Mr. Trefz made a motion to approve Variance Application #VA-21-13, The Nutter Company 2 LLC, for 94 
the east elevation for a variance of 1-1/4”; seconded by Mr. Shipley. 95 
 96 
Vote on Motion: Mr. Oster-yes, Mr. Shipley-yes, Ms. Sundar-yes, Mr. Trefz-yes 97 
Motion carried. 98 
 99 
Mr. Oster: Now we’re going to proceed with the request for the sign at 19’2-7/8” on the north elevation. 100 
 101 
Mr. Wiemken:  The north elevation sign is again a 15’ requirement. The variance request they are asking 102 
for is roughly 28.3%.  103 
 104 
Mr. Hartley: We do have an architectural feature on the north elevation that really interrupts that 15’ 105 
height. Provided example to Board. 106 
 107 
Mr. Wiemken also provided a picture of the north elevation indicating where the sign would be located. 108 
 109 
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Mr. Hartley: That wing comes in on that elevation and we had to come in either above or below that.  110 
 111 
Mr. Trefz: The drawing that we have doesn’t show that wing coming in? 112 
 113 
Mr. Hartley: Correct. That was something we discovered when we ran into that 15’ restriction.  114 
 115 
Mr. Wiemken: Does the Board have any questions on this sign for the applicant?  116 
 117 

MOTION TO APPROVE VARIANCE APPLICATON #VA-21-13 118 
 119 

Ms. Sundar made a motion to approve Variance Application #VA-21-13, The Nutter Company 2 LLC for 120 
a variance of 4’2-7/8” for the north elevation sign; seconded by Mr. Oster. 121 
 122 
Vote on Motion: Mr. Oster-yes, Mr. Shipley-yes, Ms. Sundar-yes, Mr. Trefz-no 123 
Motion carried 124 
 125 
Mr. Wiemken: The last request is for the south elevation sign which would encroach 5’8” into the 15’ 126 
height requirement. This would be roughly a 37.8% request.  127 
 128 
Mr. Shipley: There are no obstructions on that sign? 129 
 130 
Mr. Hartley: There are no architectural obstructions on that sign.  131 
 132 
Mr. Shipley: So the thought process is that you want the appearance of all the Blue Sky Carwashes to be 133 
the same. That’s why that was put there as opposed to 15’? 134 
 135 
Mr. Hartley: Yes. That way we kept a clean stall and that’s why we submitted the application.  136 
 137 
Mr. Oster: This one is on the back side facing the other businesses? 138 
 139 
Mr. Hartley: It will face the shopping center. 140 
 141 
Mr. Oster: I’m not sure what the need would be to have it that high when you’re facing the shopping 142 
center that’s right behind you over the standard 15’ which I’m sure they are at that also.  143 
 144 
Mr. Hartley: We’re simply requesting that for consistency with the other locations. Visibility, it certainly 145 
helps from the parking lot and as you approach from the south, we’re requesting a variance for height. 146 
Again, they are externally illuminated with goose necks and not emitting light, they don’t have a lighted 147 
background or bright colors.  148 
 149 
Mr. Shipley: It’s just a substantial variance. At least for me, that’s the issue.  150 
 151 
Mr. Hartley: Could we request the same height as the previous one you just approved; it would be a little 152 
less.  153 
 154 
Mr. Shipley: I think the goose neck lights are awesome, that’s fantastic but it’s over a 37% variance. 155 
 156 
Mr. Hartley: Here’s the same typical sign installed on the same tower at a different location.  157 
 158 
Mr. Oster: It does kind of fit in with the structure the way it is. 159 
  160 
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Mr. Hartley: We’re holding it conservatively down there on that building, comfortably I believe. Based on 161 
the height of the wall, it doesn’t look out of place on the wall.  162 
  163 
Mr. Trefz: What is the structural purpose of the wall being that high? 164 
 165 
Mr. Hartley: I would have to defer to the car wash manufacturer.  166 
 167 
Mr. Oster administered the oath to Mr. Nutter 168 
 169 
Barry Nutter, 441 Keisel Court, Powell, Ohio 43065, President of Nutter Company 2, owner of the site. 170 
Basically this is a patented building and by the rights to build, we don’t usually abide by it because it is 171 
patented and the purpose of that is for a tower for signage. I do know restrictions for height of building 172 
are far below what we have there, so we could have made the tower higher but the tower is designed for 173 
signage, visibility and it’s the same size tower on all our buildings, they’re pretty much exactly the same 174 
thing. Same size buildings, same materials. 175 
 176 
Mr. Hartley: Is there a compromise that you might be more comfortable in approving, a smaller increase? 177 
 178 
Mr. Oster: How does everyone feel about his recommendation to lower it down to the 19’2-7/8” like we 179 
just approved on the north elevation?  180 
 181 
Mr. Shipley: That takes it down to about 28%? 182 
 183 
Mr. Trefz: it’s still significant. 184 
 185 
Mr. Shipley, Yes, but we did approve that one.  186 
 187 
Mr. Oster: We did approve that one and he did make the suggestion to drop it down a little over a foot. 188 
 189 
Ms. Boni: The applicant will have to modify his request. We don’t do negotiations, so if he wants to 190 
request that height, then he has to request that this evening.  191 
 192 
Mr. Oster: Do you want to make that request? 193 
 194 
Mr. Hartley: Yes, we’d like to make that request.  195 
 196 
Mr. Shipley: With that particular request, it would then encroach 4’2-7/8”; is the correct?  197 
 198 
Mr. Wiemken: Correct.  199 
 200 

MOTION TO APPROVE VARIANCE APPLICATON #VA-21-13 201 
 202 

Based on the request for modification, Mr. Shipley made a motion to approve Variance Application #VA-203 
21-13, The Nutter Company 2 LLC for a variance of 4’2-7/8” for the south elevation sign to a height of 204 
19’2-7/8”; seconded by Mr. Oster. 205 
 206 
Vote on Motion: Mr. Oster-yes, Mr. Shipley-yes, Ms. Sundar-no, Mr. Trefz-no 207 
 208 
Mr. Hartley: What does a tie mean? 209 
 210 
Ms. Boni: It is denied. 211 
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Hearing continued with Variance Application/Conditional Use VA/CU-21-14  212 
 213 
Minutes prepared by Cindy Davis, Zoning Secretary  214 
 215 
 216 
 217 
 218 
 219 
  220 
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Application #VA/CU-21-14       October 14, 2021 1 
 2 
Variance/Conditional Use Application #VA/CU-21-14 Columbus Sign Co., c/o Jim McFarland & Rebecca 3 
Green, Seeking variance from Development Plan 11-0055 Creekside Industrial Park and the Orange Township 4 
Zoning Resolution for a divergence in a monument sign style and color. They are also seeking a conditional use for 5 
the monument sign. The subject property is 7115 Green Meadows Dr., Lewis Center, OH 43035 and having parcel 6 
number 318-230-14-008-003 7 
 8 
Mr. Wiemken presented the Staff Report and presentation. The applicant is seeking an Area Variance for a 9 
divergence from the monument sign style. They are also seeking a Conditional Use for a monument sign. 10 
Surrounding area, to the north is Planned Industrial, an empty lot; to the south is Farm Residential, an AEP 11 
substation; to the east is Single Family Planned Residential; there’s also a railroad to the east as well as Estates of 12 
Glen Oak; and to the west is Planned Industrial. In the Staff Review is included the standards for the rezoning case 13 
for Creekside Industrial Park. Exhibit 1 shows what the proposed sign looks like as well as the distance from Green 14 
Meadows Drive.  15 
 16 

APPLICANT PRESENTATION/ BOARD QUESTIONS & COMMENTS 17 
 18 

Jim McFarland, Columbus Sign Company, Skyline Drive, Columbus, Ohio 43219. I did want a point of clarification 19 
for something in the Staff Report. It is my understanding that divergences are authorized through the Township 20 
Board of Trustees. I don’t recall us asking for a divergence; I understand we’re requesting a variance.  21 
 22 
Ms. Boni: You are seeking a variance from the zoning, so we apologize for the text. You are correct, divergences are 23 
during the zoning cases, so the BZA hears a variance request.  24 
 25 
Mr. McFarland: The client, ATS Automation’s stance on the design of the sign is more consistent with the design of 26 
the facility itself. I believe the Township has previously approved that particular style of structure, so additionally 27 
that’s why they felt this particular sign is appropriate for the site because it does match the building quite 28 
significantly. We feel the type of design features shown in Exhibit F for Creekside Industrial Park reflect a different 29 
style of building which is not the traditional poured concrete caps, overhangs and additional capping on the sides. 30 
This type of building was approved and is constructed. We feel this particular design does not affect the spirit or 31 
intent of the Code and slightly improves and enhances the structures around there. This sign would also be less 32 
upright and less impacting, and the sign meets all the development standards in terms of setback and the size per 33 
your development text. We appreciate your consideration of that that this would be an option more consistent with 34 
the building design itself although we do request a variance from certain types of features that are listed for 35 
Creekside Industrial Park.  36 
 37 
Mr. Trefz: How is the sign illuminated? 38 
 39 
Mr. McFarland: There is no interior illumination. 40 
 41 
Mr. Trefz: So you have exterior illumination on the lights on the monument? 42 
 43 
Mr. Oster: I didn’t see any at all. 44 
 45 
Mr. McFarland: There’s an electrical plan and a charger station being considered at this location but there’s no 46 
illumination that’s been presented with this application. Our request has more to do with removing the design for the 47 
additional poured concrete caps with the 2” overhang and the additional approximately 4’ of materials to be 48 
constructed, making the sign larger than what’s necessary based on the speed limit and ingress into that location. We 49 
feel this design would really make the sign too large. We don’t feel it’s necessary to have an abundance of graphics, 50 
we want to make it simple and clean, to make it easier for lines of sight for people turning left coming out of the 51 
parkway, so as much as we respect the Creekside Industrial Parkway’s intent in terms of design and safety, the 52 
Graphics Way ingress and egress and cleanness of something that’s not illuminated is much more appealing to the 53 
developer as they designed this type of large structure. 54 
 55 
Mr. Shipley: Just for clarification; no illumination. 56 
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Mr. Oster: No illumination and the base appears to me from the drawings to be the same size of the sign, correct? 57 
 58 
Mr. McFarland: Correct.  59 
 60 
Mr. Trefz: Same width, same length? 61 
 62 
Mr. Oster: Yes; that’s the only requirement, that the base is equal to or greater than and it was greater than but he 63 
wants to change it to equal to so that all looks good to me.   64 
 65 
Ms. Sundar: Can you confirm there is no illumination? 66 
 67 
Mr. McFarland: There is no illumination as far as I can see on this request. There will be an electrical meter by the 68 
charger station but there’s no illumination proposed or requested for this particular sign.  69 
 70 
Mr. Trefz: Are the charging stations in the parking lot?  71 
 72 
Mr. McFarland: Approximate locations, near the edge of the parking lot there’s an island to be constructed 73 
somewhat in the center where the charging stations will be. The one probably closest to the sign will be a peninsula 74 
design for that particular charging station, probably by the row of trees. 75 
 76 
Mr. Oster: We have two things here. A Conditional Use but don’t they already have a Conditional Use with the first 77 
one?  78 
 79 
Mr. Wiemken: We had the Variance first and then the Conditional Use. 80 
 81 
Mr. Oster: So we have to re-do both of them because of the size.  82 
 83 

MOTION TO APPROVE VARIANCE APPLICATON #VA-21-14 84 
 85 

Mr. Oster made a motion to approve Variance Application #VA-21-14, Columbus Sign Company, seconded by Mr. 86 
Shipley. 87 
 88 
Vote on Motion: Mr. Oster-yes, Mr. Shipley-yes, Ms. Sundar-yes, Mr. Trefz-yes 89 
 90 

MOTION TO APPROVE CONDITIONAL USE APPLICATON #CU-21-14 91 
 92 

Mr. Oster made a motion to approve Conditional Use Application #CU-21-14, Columbus Sign Company, seconded 93 
by Mr. Shipley. 94 
 95 
Vote on Motion: Mr. Oster-yes, Mr. Shipley-yes, Ms. Sundar-yes, Mr. Trefz-yes 96 
Motion carried 97 
 98 
Ms. Boni: The official minutes will be via recording from now on. That’s what we’re supposed to be doing anyway, 99 
so next time you see the minutes, they’ll look a little different. 100 
 101 
Mr. Trefz: What’s the timeframe for them? If they’re here, do we get them the next week and they’re sent out the 102 
next month? 103 
 104 
Ms. Boni: That’s the hope. This one is just taking a little longer because it’s a new process for us.  105 
 106 
Hearing adjourned at 7:15 p.m. 107 
 108 
Minutes prepared by Cindy Davis, Zoning Secretary 109 
  110 
 111 
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